# Faculty Senate Steering Meeting February 8, 2007

Dr. Manoj Chopra, Faculty Senate Chair, called the meeting to order at 4:13 p.m. The roll was circulated for signatures. The minutes of January 16, 2007 were unanimously approved.

Steering Officers present: Drs. Manoj Chopra, Pamela Ark and Ida Cook.

<u>Steering Committee Members present</u>: Drs. Glenda Gunter, Aubrey Jewett, Dawn Trouard, Kalpathy Sundaram, Keith Koons, Subir Bose, Christopher Muller, Robert Pennington, Alain Kassab (Michael Haralambous), Rufus Barfield and Paul Maiden.

<u>Steering Members and Administrators absent</u>: Drs. Provost Terry Hickey, Arlen F. Chase, Lin Huff-Corzine, Henry Daniell and Jim Moharam.

Administrators present: Dr. John Schell.

Guests: Dr. Allison Morrison-Shetler.

### ANNOUNCEMENTS AND PROVOST REPORT

### Dr. Chopra Announcements:

- A judge has ruled and struck down the lawsuit FSU and FIU restricting travel to the terrorist states of Cuba, Iran, Syria, and North Korea.
- A three page document outlining a Code of Conduct for Financial Functions is at issue at USF. By signing this form, faculty enter in to an agreement faculty are held accountable for all improper activities. At issue though is the fact that there appears to be no allowance for resolution of disputes. This announcement is intended as an awareness item at this point. The Senate and the union would need to respond should a similar situation occur here at UCF.
- The *Gainesville Sun* reported in the February 7, 2007 that the Board of Trustees at the University of Florida has proposed that all Faculty Senate members participating in Faculty Senate will be asked to leave the bargaining unit as faculty senators, faculty are in the legislative branch. Such an action would impact the Faculty Senate of about 300 members. Dr. Chopra will email link to Faculty Senate steering members. Dr. Chopra announced that we will observe the situation at this point in time.

### OLD BUSINESS

None

#### **NEW BUSINESS**

### BOG Update/BOG Regulation on Academic Program Authorization - Dr. Chopra reporting

Dr. Chopra distributed a handout of BOG updates for Dr. Chase in his absence. At the BOG meeting on January 25, 2007, there was an agreement to post a notice of intent to promulgate a new BOG regulation for Academic Program Authorization.

## Faculty Senate Steering Meeting February 8, 2007

Included within the regulation is as follows:

Section (5) (a) Each university board of trustees must adopt policies for implementing new Program Majors, Program Minors, Concentrations, Areas of Emphasis, Tracks and College Credit Certificates within an existing bachelor's, master's, advanced master's, specialist, and doctoral degree program.

As curriculum matters have always been within the purview of the faculty, this proposed regulation is of concern. In question is whether the BOT could decide to designate the present procedures to continue. Issues raised include: If all approval rests with the BOT, this could be a problem with SACS - as faculty determine the curriculum and the Provost is a member of the faculty. Dr. Schell has raised issue with Dr. Denise Young as representative to SACS. The conflict is with the terms NEW and EXISTING - at the present time, new programs must go forward for approval while existing does not. Dr. Schell commented that new program majors within existing bachelor's level programs are nonexistent and thus there is inconsistent language in the regulation as stated. Committee members inquired as to the content of (5)(b) and (5)(c) - these are long documents from BOG for how to approve new programs. Similar to now, new is highly regulated by state; this is one of the new areas in the documents not previously a role of the BOT. This proposed regulation was presented prior to the Pappas group report. The notice of intent is to promulgate and could be at stage to send comments; Dr. Schell will send an email to Denise Young.

At this time no resolution was deemed necessary and the steering committee reasserts its desire to be involved in the areas noted in the statement. Specific to the "The" in bold; Dr. Schell recommendation that we ask Dr. Chase to add to 5 A - "masters" specialists, ensure faculty approval and eliminate "existing programs, etc. statement.

A 2.44% raise was included in administered funds in Governor Crist 's 2007-2008 budget; anticipate a regeneration of the current PECO list. Of note, this year's state budget revenue is much less than previous years.

## <u>Professional Academic Career Paths</u> - Dr. Schell reporting with comments from Dr. Morrison-Shetler.

This is a proposal asking Steering members as to whether it is wise at this point to ask for a conversation in regard to Professional Academic Career Paths. The history: a year ago, there was a matter brought up in regard to separate P & T paths for regional campus faculty. The Provost asked Dr. Schell to be the point person to do investigation and research. Of note, there is a lot of variation across the country, and as UCF matures, one size does not fit all in academic career tracks. As classroom teachers retire and are replaced by research faculty - the question is who is going to carry on load of quality undergraduate teaching.

First, there is no pre-determined plan at this point; and if something were to be developed, would be for new faculty coming in to UCF. There is no thought at this stage that the Professional Academic Career Path option would be retroactive to current faculty. The College of Sciences has been talking about this path with all science departments except Chemistry. Dr. Morrison-Shetler commented that the idea of being everything to all is an opportunity to discuss. Dr. Chopra has talked with Dr. Schell - the Provost is interested in hearing faculty views.

## Faculty Senate Steering Meeting February 8, 2007

The consensus of Faculty Senate committee members is that we should have the conversation - and a recommendation was made that Dr. Schell conduct a series of discussion sessions to invite all to come and discuss to learn the sense of the faculty; Dr. Schell would return with a report to Faculty Senate Steering committee. There was also discussion of the possibility of visiting lines changes and the commitment to fund the lines. The Cornell model was referenced along with Boston University.

Members suggested that Dr. Schell should gather information from other institutions; review various areas of academics and involve faculty and administrators as ad hoc group or set of existing groups such as, the university P & T committees and college P & T committees to begin the conversation that will take place perhaps at the FCTL. Of issue is the potential financial impact of the proposed path. Drs. Schell and Chopra will take back suggestions to the Provost for how to begin the conversation and consideration of the financial impact.

### <u>Resolution 2006-2007-3 on ETD Dissemination</u> - Dr. Chopra reported

While the resolution was passed at the last FS meeting, since then there have been further discussions about the resolution in its present form. The Graduate Council and Dr. Bishop discussed with Dr. Chopra as to the issue of patents. As a point of order, the resolution sent to the Provost was sent back to Senate for clarification. A vote was taken and it was unanimously voted to pull back this resolution and return it to the Graduate Council committee.

Of note, the turnitin.com resolution is still in the committee until the patent issue is resolved. These two may be brought back up together in the future.

## <u>Update on Constitutional Revisions</u> - Dr. Cook reported

Drs. Pennington, Chase and Cook are working together to review the constitution for needed changes. Key changes are as listed:

- ➢ is the 60 to 70 or 72 apportionment number
- representation of medical college academic faculty as the representatives of the college
- > on page two, change the name of the oversight committee to new name
- part of that committee proposing in relationship to GEP (tenure, tenure-earning and instructors; some is directed by instructors; to allow and enfranchise faculty as they are currently not on senate)

Members are asked to review constitution and send suggested changes via email to Dr. Cook.

### STANDING COMMITTEE REPORTS

Budget and Administrative Committee - Dr. Trouard reported

Three meetings were conducted to decide the allocation of the monies; Proposals submitted by six colleges and three units - each received some allotment. There were some line item decisions. \$403,806 total was recommended - which is \$3000 over budget. Dr. Schell agreed to accommodate the additional amount.

- <u>Graduate Council Committee</u> Dr. Jewett reported
   No committee report today; anticipate patent resolution in late March
- Personnel Committee Dr. Barfield reported

No committee report; Dr. Kaplan will convene meeting next week and give report at full FS February 22, 2007 meeting. Dr. Barfield's spring schedule now allows that he will be able to attend Steering meetings and was reinstated as the steering liaison.

> <u>UPCC</u> - *Dr. Pennington reported* 

Undergraduate course review committee met; fee assessment review; Program review is scheduled to meet next Tuesday.

### OTHER

### Parking Advisory Committee Update - Dr. Cook reported

Dr. Schell was informed of a problem with parking advisory committee. The role and importance of this Faculty Senate Reporting committee is not being properly recognized by the Vice President. Dr. Cook has attempted to obtain a response from Business and Finance on Parking; the committee is supposed to meet at least one semester/twice a year. Dr. Gunter attended as representative of Faculty Senate steering and reported that Mr. Merck sent Mr. John Clark to the meeting with his comment that "never knew committee existed". Dr. Cook reiterated that this committee is in the Faculty Constitution to recommend policies that will foster mutual environment and bring policy recommendations to Faculty Senate steering. Dr. Chopra sits on President's Advisory Staff Committee and will convey information to the committee.

Update on RIA revisions - Dr. Cook reported

The next meeting is Wednesday, February 14, 2007.

### Dean search for the College of Science

A concern was raised by a steering member that this year's COS Dean search does not include tenured position in the job description. He questioned if an untenured dean could make tenure decisions. Tenured position language was in last year's ad. Action: Committee asked Dr. Schell to find out more information.

### ADJOURNMENT

Meeting was adjourned 5:57 p.m.

## DRAFT

### A Consideration of UCF Academic Career Path Models

As UCF matures, the mission of our university has become more complex. We continue to emphasize access and solid undergraduate teaching while also encouraging research and the growth of our graduate programs. Faculty experience the tension caused by these two goals and may not be well served by our present workload, evaluation, and promotion and tenure system.

For instance, some of us who give priority to our teaching have found it difficult to earn tenure and promotion. Some think that our criteria for teaching in our existing promotion and tenure process are insufficiently developed.

Some of us who are research faculty face teaching expectations that hinder our research efforts. Or we carry reduced teaching loads and are replaced with full-time instructors or part-time adjuncts in the classroom.

Here is our dilemma: How do we encourage research while also supporting professionals in the classroom? Are there alternative faculty workload, evaluation, and promotion models that could support the goal of "the best undergraduate education in Florida" and also develop our national reputation for excellence in research?

We would like to initiate a faculty-wide discussion about career track options. Here are some models to consider:

- A formal, university-wide, work-load differentiation plan, in which faculty are assigned to either a research or a teaching track, keeping existing promotion and tenure criteria
- A tenure-track for teaching professionals (terminal degree required) that parallels our existing research tenure track, with new promotion and tenure criteria correlated to teaching success
- A track for teaching professionals (terminal degree required) that parallels our existing research tenure track. Which replicates the tenure track in all matters but does not provide tenure, with new promotion criteria correlated to teaching success
- Maintaining the current system

In addition, we might also consider other academic professional career tracks, such as:

• Clinical professionals

We might also think about a career-track for some of our non-professional colleagues:

• Teachers who do not have terminal degrees, whom we now refer to as Instructors.

Thanks.

## BOG Issue: (from Dr. A. Chase)

At the BOG meeting on Jan 25, there was an agreement to post a notice of intent to promulgate a new BOG regulation for Academic Program Authorization. Included within this regulation is the following:

"(5) (a) Each university board of trustees must adopt policies for implementing new Program Majors, Program Minors, Concentrations, Areas of Emphasis, Tracks and College Credit Certificates within an existing bachelor's, master's, advanced master's, specialist, and doctoral degree program."

Certain individuals have indicated to me that <u>this was NOT a prerogative of the</u> <u>old Board of Regents</u>. I would like to make sure that all of you feel comfortable with this wording, especially as Curriculum matters have always been in the purview of the faculty. If this regulation is adopted, we would need to ensure that <u>each BOT returned the authority to implement program changes to the faculty</u>. Alternatively, we can try to change the BOG wording. This regulation should be posted on their website for comments. Please let me know how your Steering Committees feel on this issue and whether or not it is worth pursuing; thanks.

### Update:

Mark Rosenberg circulated a summary of the Crist recommended 2007-2008 budget. From a faculty perspective, a 2.44% raise is included in administered funds. No tuition increase is recommended and over-enrollment is not funded. Also, the PECO dollars were cut and redistributed to K-12. The full text follows:

Operating Budget Summary: The Educational & General budget would increase 6.7% over the current year base appropriation. This excludes the \$80 million for the World Class Scholars, Centers of Excellence, and Science and Engineering Research & Development Programs.

Access to Higher Education - \$101.2 M

This will fund 6,738 new FTE students entering the state university system this fall. Of the \$101.2 million, \$72.2 million is from state funds and the balance (\$28.9 million) from tuition paid by the students. This would fund new growth at 100% of the Board's funding model. (BOG Request – 10,153 FTE students including over-enrollments plus new growth; \$151 M (\$108 M state funds & \$43 M tuition)

- FIU Medical School Implementation \$5.5 M (same as BOG request)
- UCF Medical School Implementation \$4.7 M (same as BOG request)

FAU/UM Medical Partnership - \$4.7 M (same as BOG request)
 \$2.6 million continues the phase in of this program and \$2.1 million replaces

\$2.6 million continues the phase-in of this program and \$2.1 million replaces non-recurring funds received in 2006-07.

Major Gift Matching Program - \$45 M (nonrecurring) (same as BOG request)
 Tuition – no tuition increase for resident undergraduate students. (consistent with

 Tuition – no tuition increase for resident undergraduate students. (consistent with BOG current policy) SUCCEED - \$8.85 M (nonrecurring) (BOG on record as supporting SUCCEED funding)

Continues the funding provided in 2006-07 for awards to be made through a competitive application process to train students for high skill/high wage jobs.

• Salary Increases – universities are included in administered funds for a 2.44% increase effective October 1.

21st Century Act

World Class Scholars - \$20 M (non-recurring)

Centers of Excellence - \$40 M (non-recurring)

Science & Engineering Research & Economic Development Programs - \$20 M (non-recurring)

Fixed Capital Outlay Summary:

\$386 million from PECO for projects on the BOG approved 3-year list. Proviso states that funds shall be allocated to first year projects as specified in the State University System 3-year PECO project list approved by the BOG. (This is \$84 million, or 18%, less than the \$470 million approved on Jan. 25th by the BOG. The \$84 million is redirected towards K-12 Class Size Reduction)

\$47 million from PECO for maintenance, repair and renovations \$14 million for Courtelis Facilities matching

Other Items of Interest:

Stem Cell Research Grant Program - \$20 M

Competitive grants would be available for medical research. Institutions and universities could explore possible treatments and cures for degenerative diseases such as Alzheimer's and Parkinson's diseases and spinal cord injuries.

Bright Futures - \$372 M

Includes an increase of \$25.7 M. This program will serve approximately 159,000 students.

Arlen

Possible changes to the UCF Faculty Constitution:

Pg. 6 – 3.3 Apportionment. Formula – change number of senators from 60 to 70.

Formula to stay the same, however:

ADD the phrase: Eligible faculty from the Medical college is defined as the number of teaching and research faulty who are involved in the academic degree-granting programs and not involved in clinical practice.

In process

Pg. 9, 3.8.5.2 – change number from 12 to 14.
Pg. 11 – 3.10.3.1.1 Faculty Senate Steering Committee
Line 2 – delete the word, "twelve" senators apportioned from the colleges...
Change to 14 senators.

Pg. 12, 3.10.3.2.2.2 Lines 4 and 5: Change word "would" to "should"?

Pg. 13, 3.10.4.1.1 – Undergraduate Policy and Curriculum Committee: Line 13, change verb from "is" to "are"

Pg. 16, Personnel Committee

3.10.6.1 Membership, Change wording to:

Each college shall have at least one representative and the remaining members are unrestricted with regard to college affiliation. The vice president for Academic Affairs or his/her designee is an ex officio member.

Pg. 17, Budget and Administrative Procedures Committee

3.10.7.1 Membership, change:

Line 3 "...the library (nonvoting)..." Delete "nonvoting"

Line 8, change wording, with "college deans, and the vice president for Research."

Pg. 18, Admissions and Standards Committee.

3.10.9.1 Membership

Line 2 and  $3 - \dots$  to bring the number up to ten." Change to  $\dots$  to bring the total membership to ten."

Pg. 26, University Athletics Committee

ADD, 3.10.18.2.? Add the phrase as is found in 3.10.19.2.4, "To comply with the relevant provisions of sections 3.10.1 and 3.10.2 of the Faculty Constitution."

Pg. 27, University Promotion and Tenure Committee.

ADD, 3.10.20.2.?? – Add the phrase "To comply with the relevant provisions of sections 3.10.1 and 3.10.2 of the Faculty Constitution."

Pg. 28, Change name of the Common Undergraduate Program Requirements Oversight Committee to "Undergraduate Common Program Oversight Committee." Also change other references in this section where name appears.

### 3.10.22.1 Membership

Line 6 Change "Only tenured and tenure-earning faculty members are eligible to serve on..." to "Tenured, tenure-earning faculty and instructors are eligible to serve..."

3.10.22.2.1 change wording "to monitor that students fulfill common undergraduate..." to ?? [wording is awkward.]

Other changes? Please advise, cook@mail.ucf.edu